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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. Maybe I should say good evening.

          4                 Today we are having our second

          5  hearing on a bill that promises to have historical

          6  ramifications for the City. No hard working wage

          7  earner should be receiving poverty wages, yet

          8  regrettably in the City we do have a population of

          9  working poor.

         10                 My name is Bill Perkins, Chair of the

         11  Council's Governmental Operations Committee, and

         12  next to me is Council Member Robert Jackson, Chair

         13  of the Council's Contracts Committee.

         14                 Together we will consider and review

         15  the living wage bill that is now before the Council.

         16                 This proposed bill, Intro. 66-A, is

         17  intended to be a first step in remedying the problem

         18  of poverty among working families in our City, while

         19  also promoting a proud work effort.

         20                 The Council plans to have New York

         21  City join numerous other municipalities across the

         22  nation that have successfully implemented living

         23  wages.

         24                 Intro. No. 66-A essentially requires

         25  employers who hire workers under a City contract to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            5

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND CONTRACTS

          2  pay a living wage.

          3                 Because this is an extensive and

          4  far-reaching bill, we will need to be certain that

          5  the bill is drafted to do what it is it is supposed

          6  to do without any unintended effects.

          7                 Now it is important to say at the

          8  outset that Intro. No. 66-A, although far reaching,

          9  unfortunately does not cover all low-wage workers.

         10                 There are various categories of

         11  employers and employees that the bill does not

         12  currently address.

         13                 The City is suffering one of its

         14  worst economic and fiscal crises in decades. The

         15  financial position of the City has become extremely

         16  precarious, following September 11th, and the huge

         17  downturn in the economy witnessed this last year.

         18                 As a result, the City cannot afford

         19  to bring all of the City's low-wage workers under

         20  the umbrella of this legislation. However, Intro.

         21  66-A is a beginning, not an end, and Intro. 66-A

         22  should not be looked at as an expense but as an

         23  investment.

         24                 We are investing in our workforce,

         25  which is an investment in our economy.
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          2                 For every dollar we put in the

          3  pockets of a working family, we are putting a dollar

          4  back into our City's economy, and in this regard,

          5  Intro. 66-A represents a particularly auspicious

          6  opportunity because for every dollar in the

          7  aggregate, we raised the standard of living of

          8  certain employees under the bill, will be matched by

          9  $9 of state and federal money.

         10                 Although Intro. 66-A may not be as

         11  far reaching currently as we all expect it will

         12  eventually be, it is a tremendous first step forward

         13  in making certain that our proud, hard-working

         14  families will receive a wage they can live on, and a

         15  wage they can be proud of.

         16                 Before we hear from our first panel,

         17  I want to thank Speaker Gifford Miller for his role

         18  in helping this legislation move forward, and now

         19  let me introduce our Council Members and staff, and

         20  my fellow Chair Robert Jackson once again.

         21                 First, the members of the Committee

         22  on Governmental Operations. Madeline Provenzano, on

         23  my right. On my left, next to her is Leroy Comrie.

         24  Next to him is Philip Reed. On my right we are

         25  joined by Helen Sears, not a member of this
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          2  Committee, but a very interested member of the

          3  Council in this particular legislation. Margarita

          4  Lopez of the Contracts Committee. Michael Nelson of

          5  the Governmental Operations Committee.  In the front

          6  row we have Peter Vallone, Jr.; John Liu; Dr.

          7  Kendall Stewart; Yvette Clarke; Joseph Addabbo; and

          8  David Yassky.

          9                 We will hear now from our Chairman of

         10  the Contracts Committee Robert Jackson.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         12  Deputy Majority Leader Perkins, and good afternoon

         13  everyone. Today the Committee on Contracts and

         14  Government Ops are meeting jointly to consider what

         15  I think is one of the most important bills of this

         16  session - proposed Intro. No. 66-A, which is

         17  commonly known as the Living Wage Bill, and the

         18  Living Wage Bill reflects a simple concept for me,

         19  and the concept is that people who work should

         20  receive a living wage. Not the minimum wage, but a

         21  living wage. New Yorkers, a living wage that can

         22  help some of the lowest paid, hardest working New

         23  Yorkers, maintain the dignity that should be

         24  afforded to all workers, workers such as Juanita

         25  Perkins, Guadeloupe, Ernestine and many, many other
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          2  workers that I know that need this particular bill

          3  to turn into actual law, so they don't have to work

          4  seven days a week, and some of them work two jobs

          5  seven days a week just to be able to afford to pay

          6  their rent.

          7                 Specifically the bill sets the living

          8  wage at $10 an hour, and being mindful of the

          9  budgetary issues, phases in that wage over several

         10  years.

         11                 The bill also requires that these

         12  workers receive health benefit package in addition

         13  to their wage, which must be worth at least a dollar

         14  and fifty cents. As such, this bill would require

         15  that people providing such vital services as day

         16  care for children, and home care for the elderly,

         17  make an hourly wage that keeps them out of poverty

         18  and ensures their independence from public

         19  assistance normally known as welfare.

         20                 The road to this bill has been long

         21  and hard, without a doubt. I am confident that it

         22  has been time well spent, because the bill we are

         23  considering today represents a significant advance

         24  for working New Yorkers, the ones that I expressed

         25  and said some of their names, who have provided so
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          2  much help in the creation of this law. The advocates

          3  out there, many of you are in this room, have worked

          4  long and hard to try to bring about the ideal

          5  situation that we all would have liked, but I want

          6  to particularly thank and acknowledge the leadership

          7  of Council Member, Deputy Majority Leader Bill

          8  Perkins, Chair of Government Ops, and with whom I

          9  sit today, and, of course, our leader, Speaker

         10  Gifford Miller, who is also the prime sponsor of

         11  this bill, and who's supporting care for the idea

         12  that underscores this bill has been so vital to it

         13  soon becoming law.

         14                 We stand prepared today to help New

         15  York's hardest working, lowest paid workers move up

         16  two steps of the ladder, and we can and should do no

         17  less for these individuals that depend on this great

         18  City.

         19                 And with that, I'm going to turn it

         20  back over to Chair Bill Perkins.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         22  much, Councilman Jackson.

         23                 I have been informed by several

         24  members that due to scheduling conflicts, that they

         25  have to leave right away, and so what I would like
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          2  to do is to accommodate them while we have a quorum,

          3  and allow them to make their vote.

          4                 So, I believe Councilwoman Madeline

          5  Provenzano wants to be amongst those, and I believe

          6  Council Member David Yassky from the Contracts

          7  Committee as well.

          8                 If that be the case, maybe we should

          9  proceed with that right now.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chairman. I appreciate your consideration. And

         13  although I had many problems with the bill because

         14  of the fiscal impacts that were originally in it, as

         15  I look at the statement it says 000, so I vote yes.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Yassky.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         19  much. Now we'll proceed with our witnesses.

         20                 We're going to start with Mr. Jeff

         21  Kaye of the Office of Management and Budget. Please

         22  come forward to have a seat.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Good afternoon,

         24  Mr. Kaye. Could you raise your right hand.

         25                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            11

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND CONTRACTS

          2  the testimony you're about to give will be the whole

          3  truth and nothing but the truth?

          4                 MR. KAYE: I do.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

          6                 Could you please for the record state

          7  your name, office you're affiliated with and your

          8  position.

          9                 MR. KAYE: My name is Jeffrey Kaye,

         10  I'm an Assistant Director for Intergovernmental

         11  Affairs at the Office of Management and Budget.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You may proceed.

         14                 MR. KAYE: The Office of Management

         15  and Budget has reviewed the legislation before us

         16  today. We believe an agreement with City Council and

         17  the leadership, Finance Division, that this bill

         18  will have a minimal budget impact this fiscal year

         19  and the following fiscal year.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Would you repeat

         21  yourself. Some members didn't hear you back here.

         22                 MR. KAYE: The Office of Management

         23  and Budget has reviewed the legislation before us

         24  today. We believe similar to the financial impact

         25  done by the Council's Finance Division that this
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          2  bill will have a minimal if zero budget impact in

          3  this fiscal year and next fiscal year.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So, just to be

          5  clear, we'll have a minimal impact and therefore

          6  there is no concerns on the part of the

          7  Administration in terms of any fiscal impact?

          8                 MR. KAYE: We believe at this time,

          9  after reviewing the legislation that this has a very

         10  little minimal fiscal impact; that's correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 MR. KAYE: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: We're going to

         15  now proceed to our next panel.

         16                 From DC 37, Kate Pfordresher. Forgive

         17  me if I mispronounce your name. From the Hotel

         18  Employees and Restaurant Employees Union, Local 100,

         19  Michelle Travis; and from the Cooperative Home Care

         20  Associates, Inc., Miss Carol Marsh.

         21                 Prior to swearing you in and allowing

         22  you to present your testimony, I want to provide

         23  Council Member John Liu with an opportunity to cast

         24  his vote at this time because of a scheduling matter

         25  that is pressing.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chair, for your indulgence. I vote aye on this bill.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PRKINS: One second, John.

          5  One second.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Liu.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, I want to

          9  thank everyone, especially the panel that's about to

         10  make a presentation, as well as those who will be

         11  following, for their patience in waiting for this

         12  hearing to take place. And I know that it's been a

         13  few hours delayed by virtue of the last-minute

         14  negotiations, which we believe have proven to be

         15  fruitful. However, we again want to emphasize our

         16  appreciation for your patience, and by the same

         17  token want to ask you, in the interest of time, to

         18  as much as possible summarize your presentation so

         19  that we can have an opportunity to, if necessary,

         20  have some questions, and at the same time get

         21  through some of the others, due to the lateness of

         22  the hour, okay?

         23                 Thank you very much. You will be

         24  sworn in now.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Good afternoon.
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          2  Could you raise your right hand?

          3                 Do you each solemnly swear or affirm

          4  that the testimony you're about to give is the truth

          5  and nothing but the truth?

          6                 MS. MARSH: I do.

          7                 MS. PFORDRESHER: I do.

          8                 MS. TRAVIS: I do.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         10                 Could you please each for the record

         11  state your name, your organization you're affiliated

         12  with, and your position.

         13                 MS. PFORDRESHER: My name is Kate

         14  Pfordresher. I'm an Assistant --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Can you press

         16  the button, if you don't mind. And pull the mic up a

         17  little closer so we can hear you.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 MS. PFORDRESHER: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:

         21  Sergeant-At-Arms, can you take care of her mic,

         22  please.

         23                 MS. PFORDRESHER: No, that's okay. I

         24  think I was just too far away from the mic.

         25                 My name is Kate Pfordresher. I'm from
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          2  District Council 37 of AFSCME.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Kate, can you

          4  please pull your mic closer, if you don't mind. Or

          5  will you turn up the audio so we can hear Kate way

          6  in the back?

          7                 Can you please restate it again?

          8                 MS. PFORDRESHER: Yes. I'm sorry. My

          9  name is Kate Pfordresher. I'm an Assistant Director

         10  at District Council 37 for AFSCME.

         11                 MS. TRAVIS: I'm Michelle Travis, and

         12  I'm with the Hotel Employees and Restaurant

         13  Employees Union, Local 100, and I'm a research

         14  analyst there.

         15                 MS. MARSH: My name is Carol Marsh,

         16  I'm a consultant with Cooperative Home Care

         17  Associates in the Bronx.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Each one of you

         19  have about three minutes, and we're going to put the

         20  clock on. So you can begin.

         21                 MS. PFORDRESHER: All right. Should I

         22  go first?

         23                 MS. MARSH: Yes.

         24                 MS. PFORDRESHER: On behalf of

         25  Executive Director Lilian Roberts and the 125,000
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          2  members of our union, I want to thank the Chairs,

          3  the members of the two Committees, for the

          4  opportunity to speak in behalf of this Intro. 66-A.

          5                 District Council 37 strongly supports

          6  the principles on which this legislation is

          7  premised. Our union backed efforts to pass a

          8  comprehensive living wage law in 1996, and we

          9  believe this public policy is necessary now more

         10  than ever.

         11                 In addition, the public has the right

         12  to know how scarce tax dollars are used, whether the

         13  benefits accrue to the whole community in

         14  sustainable better pay jobs for low wage workers, or

         15  whether New York City is complicit in driving down

         16  wages for these workers through procurement in an

         17  economic investment policy.

         18                 Currently the City cannot even

         19  accurately determine how large its contract

         20  workforce is, nor how well or how poorly it is paid.

         21  It cannot answer this question because the City does

         22  not require contractors report the necessary

         23  information.

         24                 We believe the City's contracting

         25  process should be made more transparent and
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          2  accountable, and for this reason, we strong support

          3  the provisions in the current Intro. 66-A, to

          4  require all City service contractors report the

          5  numbers of workers and full-time equivalents

          6  employed, the numbers of new jobs created, the job

          7  classification and job descriptions of workers,

          8  their wages and benefits paid, including whether

          9  these workers receive family health coverage, paid

         10  sick leave, vacation and holiday pay.

         11                 This information should be included

         12  in the Comptroller's annual summary report on

         13  contracts, and the data should be readily available

         14  for the public.

         15                 In addition, tax credits, loan

         16  guarantees and other economic subsidies are public

         17  investments in private companies. As New York City

         18  residents and taxpayers we have a stake in the

         19  City's future prosperity and economic vitality. But

         20  we also believe that the benefits coming to

         21  corporations and land owners out of these public

         22  investments should be shared with all New Yorkers in

         23  the form of good sustainable jobs for local

         24  residents over the longer term.

         25                 Without requiring better reporting
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          2  requirements of economic subsidy requirements that

          3  includes employment and wage information, it is

          4  impossible to measure the effectiveness of the

          5  City's economic development strategies in achieving

          6  this goal.

          7                 Our union appreciates the Council's

          8  move to expand living wage guarantees to cover

          9  contractors providing home care services, day care

         10  and services to individuals with cerebral palsy.

         11                 This is a critical step in assuring a

         12  living wage for thousands of low wage workers, and

         13  we commend you all for doing this.

         14                 However, we note that below

         15  subsistent wages are not limited to this handful of

         16  industries. The advances made by this legislation

         17  ultimately should not stop there.

         18                 We believe improving the City's

         19  procurement and economic development granting

         20  systems to require recording employment wage and

         21  benefit data as a critical next step.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 MS. TRAVIS: Again, my name is
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          2  Michelle Travis, I'm with the Hotel Employees and

          3  Restaurant Employees Union, Local 100, and I'm here

          4  on behalf of the HERE Local 100 to comment on the

          5  new version of the living wage bill.

          6                 The new and revised version of the

          7  bill takes a positive step toward ensuring living

          8  wages for the City's low-wage health care workers.

          9                 However, it is a stripped down

         10  version of the bill originally introduced this

         11  spring.

         12                 It is unfortunate that the new

         13  version eliminates the requirement that recipients

         14  of major economic subsidy deals pay their low-wage

         15  employees and their contracted food service,

         16  security and other service workers a living wage.

         17                 We believe the City Council has

         18  missed a real opportunity here to create a bill that

         19  would for the first time require some of the richest

         20  corporations that receive our tax dollars to give

         21  something back to the City's poorest New Yorkers.

         22                 An earlier version of the bill heard

         23  before the City Council this spring, did require

         24  recipients of major subsidy deals to pay a living

         25  wage to these workers.
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          2                 The subsidy requirement is not

          3  onerous for the City, in fact, it costs the City

          4  nothing, nor is it onerous for corporations and

          5  would affect only a handful of major corporations

          6  annually.

          7                 In the time of fiscal crisis it is

          8  smart economics to ensure that the City is not

          9  throwing money away to companies that are forcing

         10  low-wage workers onto public assistance and public

         11  hospitals.

         12                 The bill introduced in April had

         13  already cut out some employers of low-wage workers,

         14  like cultural institutions and non-profits. The

         15  Living Wage Coalition was opened to further

         16  compromise to ensure that the subsidy requirement

         17  remained in the bill.

         18                 Unfortunately these efforts seem to

         19  have been ignored. As a result, the current version

         20  will fail to touch the lives of some of the lowest

         21  paid workers in the service industry.

         22                 We do believe it is important for the

         23  City Council to pass the living wage bill. We do

         24  hope, however, that the Council understands that

         25  this bill is just a step, and that the next step the
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          2  Council takes should be forward thinking, and not to

          3  consider ways in which this bill can be expanded and

          4  used as a tool to raise low-wage workers out of

          5  poverty.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 MS. MARSH: My name is Carol March,

         10  and with Cooperative Home Care Associates.

         11                 Today I'm going to be reading the

         12  testimony of Bridget Freeman, who is a home health

         13  aid who was not able to stay this long.

         14                 My name is Bridget Freeman. I am a

         15  Home Health Aide and I work for Cooperative Home

         16  Care Associates, a worker-owned licensed home care

         17  agency in the South Bronx.

         18                 I've worked as a Home Health Aide for

         19  over 14 years and with Cooperative for the past

         20  four. I'm also a member of my company's Policy

         21  Action Group. A group we started so that Home Health

         22  Aides could begin using our voices to help improve

         23  jobs for all home care workers, as well as the

         24  quality of care our clients receive.

         25                 I'd like to begin today by clearing
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          2  up an issue of continuing confusion, the difference

          3  between Home Health Aides and Home Attendants.

          4                 A Home Attendant is a job title

          5  created for those workers who work for the City and

          6  work exclusively with Medicaid patients. Home Health

          7  Aides work for private licensed companies and care

          8  for patients who receive both Medicare and Medicaid.

          9                 Although Home Health Aides receive

         10  more training, both Home Attendants and Aides

         11  provide basically the same services for their

         12  clients. The major difference currently is that Home

         13  Attendants, members of Local 1199 will receive

         14  additional increases in wages that the union

         15  negotiated with the Governor, and in addition funds

         16  from the Living Wage legislation, if passed.

         17                 Today I'm speaking on behalf of my

         18  co-workers and thousands of other Home Health Aides

         19  and clients that have been left out of both

         20  agreements.

         21                 I'm here because I want to bring a

         22  strong message to you and to our Mayor. We Home

         23  Health Aides and our clients count too. In my 14

         24  years of experience I've seen where my clients or

         25  their family members need help. They don't ask for a
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          2  Home Health Aide or a Home Attendant, they just want

          3  a good aide, someone they know will be

          4  compassionate, well trained and trustworthy. But

          5  most of all, they hope to find someone who does this

          6  work because they love working with people like I

          7  do, and someone who thinks as I do about my clients.

          8                 What if this person were a member of

          9  my own family? And if a Home Attendant eventually

         10  replaces me on a case, they still will want the same

         11  type of person.

         12                 Right now I'm working with a

         13  41-year-old quadriplegic client who has a spinal

         14  cord injury. I get to his house at 8:00 a.m., help

         15  him get up, take his vital signs, massage his

         16  muscles, bathe him, prepare his meals and help him

         17  exercise.

         18                 I have to re-position him often so

         19  that his skin doesn't break down. I also escort him

         20  to his appointments, shop for him and clean his

         21  house. I work with for 12 hours a day, for four days

         22  a week.

         23                 I needed special training and I've

         24  learned a lot about injuries and how to provide the

         25  best care for this type of client. But to me, he's
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          2  more than a Care Plan; we're connected as people

          3  too.

          4                 As much as I love this work and my

          5  clients, I also need to receive good wages and

          6  benefits to better support my family. I'm a single

          7  mother of six and a grandmother of two. My youngest

          8  child is 11 and my oldest is 22. And at times, I've

          9  had to survive on public assistance. Since I'm a

         10  worker-owner in my company, we decide our annual

         11  wages and benefits. And I can tell you that we're

         12  getting the best wages and benefits that the company

         13  can afford because we see the financial records. But

         14  I'm still barely able to make ends meet, because the

         15  money the company gets for my contractors is not

         16  enough to pay better wages and benefits.

         17                 The only way our contractors can pay

         18  us more is for the government to provide more money

         19  to increase our wages and benefits.

         20                 As much as we support the current

         21  living wage legislation, it does not go far enough.

         22  We cannot continue to be left out when Home

         23  Attendants will make up to $3 more an hour over the

         24  next three years.

         25                 Recently, Councilwoman Christine
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          2  Quinn held important hearings on the entire Home

          3  Care industry. We all listened with astonishment as

          4  one Home Health Aide stated that she had worked for

          5  a company for 30 years, but still could not afford

          6  to pay for a pair of glasses or take a vacation.

          7                 There is danger in this for all of us

          8  in keeping the wages for Home Health Aides so low,

          9  dangers that no one will be able to afford to keep

         10  doing this work.

         11                 We already have a statewide crisis,

         12  there is not enough Home Health Aides to care for

         13  the growing number of patients who need them. If

         14  something isn't done, one day not so far away we may

         15  all find ourselves in a situation of desperately

         16  needing someone to care for a family member or even

         17  ourselves, and there will be no one who can come.

         18                 So, if we cannot be included in this

         19  legislation being discussed today, then I ask the

         20  members of the City Council to find other ways to

         21  provide us with a living wage.

         22                 Because we do not work for companies

         23  with City contracts, we suggest that you look into

         24  the concept of instituting a prevailing wage for our

         25  industry, this would be one way of addressing this

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            26

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND CONTRACTS

          2  critical need.

          3                 I hope that you will pass the Living

          4  Wage legislation before you today, but I also hope

          5  that you will look seriously into other strategies

          6  for keeping Home Health Aides employed and patients

          7  continuing to receive quality care.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         10  much, we appreciate your testimony. Are there any

         11  questions of the members?

         12                 I want to acknowledge the presence of

         13  Councilwoman Gale Brewer, from Manhattan, and

         14  Councilwoman Eva Moskowitz from Manhattan.

         15                 We're now going to hear from our next

         16  panel.

         17                 I want to call Gloria Waldron of

         18  ACORN; Edward Geffner of the Human Services Council;

         19  Paul Sonn, the Brennan Center for Justice.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Bridget, thank

         21  you for coming, Bridget. And we hear you, this is

         22  the first step.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And is Elliott

         24  Roseboro also from ACORN?

         25                 Do we need a chair for anyone? Would
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          2  you get them a chair so they can be closer to the

          3  table?

          4                 I called four names, I see five

          5  people. Is that somebody is teaming up so-to-speak?

          6  It doesn't matter, I just want to make sure.

          7                 Okay, you'll be sworn in now. Thank

          8  you.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Good afternoon.

         10  Could you please raise your right hand.

         11                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm the

         12  testimony you're about to give is the truth and

         13  nothing but the truth?

         14                 MS. WALDRON: I do.

         15                 MS. HARTZOG: I do.

         16                 MS. DEMESE: I do.

         17                 MR. SONN: I do.

         18                 MR. ROSEBORO: I do.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         20                 Could you each, for the record, state

         21  your name, your organization you're affiliated with

         22  and your position?

         23                 MS. WALDRON: Gloria Waldron, ACORN.

         24                 MR. ROSEBORO: Elliott Roseboro, Vice

         25  President of ACORN.
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          2                 MR. SONN: Paul Sonn, Brennan Center

          3  at NYU Law School.

          4                 MS. HARTZOG: Melanie Hartzog, Human

          5  Services Council.

          6                 MS. DEMESE: Cynthia DeMese,

          7  Government Affairs Consultant for Human Services

          8  Council.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         10                 You may begin with your testimony.

         11  Start.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And excuse me,

         13  if you don't mind, there is another sound in the

         14  room from the air conditioning that makes it

         15  difficult for us to hear you, so if you could just

         16  keep that in mind or try to speak a little louder or

         17  bring the mic closer it would be helpful.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 MS. WALDRON: The concept behind any

         20  Living Wage bill is simple. Our limited public

         21  dollars should not be subsidizing poverty wage work.

         22                 When subsidized employers are allowed

         23  to pay their workers less than a living wage,

         24  taxpayers end up putting a double bill, the initial

         25  subsidy and then the food stamps, emergency medical,
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          2  housing and social services low wage workers may

          3  require to support themselves and their families

          4  even minimally.

          5                 Public dollars should be leveraged

          6  for the public good, reserved for those private

          7  sector employers who demonstrate a commitment to

          8  providing decent family supporting jobs in our local

          9  communities.

         10                 Compared to other living wage laws,

         11  the proposed New York City bill has an extremely

         12  narrow scope of coverage. The traditional living

         13  wage law includes most or all of the following

         14  components: Direct City and/or county employees;

         15  City, county contractors and/or subcontractors;

         16  recipients of City, county economic development

         17  assistance subsidies; contractors of economic

         18  development assistance recipients; tenants or lease

         19  holders of economic development assistance

         20  recipients; tenants or on City property; public or

         21  quasi-public authorities; corporations or agencies;

         22  ports; airports; economic development on school

         23  districts; transit agencies and public housing

         24  authorities.

         25                 Unfortunately, this joint committee
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          2  is considering a bill version that betrays many of

          3  the core principles of any living wage bill and

          4  fails to require anything of large employers feeding

          5  on the public. More importantly, the bill leaves

          6  thousands of deserving employees grinding it out in

          7  poverty. While San Francisco, Baltimore, St. Louis,

          8  passed or enacted living wage laws that resemble the

          9  first version of New York City bill, our City faces

         10  the daunting task of rebuilding itself from the

         11  ground up, has pushed these core living wages

         12  principles aside.

         13                 While living wage critics argue that

         14  it is not the right time for such a law or that this

         15  is sending a wrong message to businesses attempting

         16  to help the City rebuild, we would argue that

         17  rebuilding is a two-way street.

         18                 In order for companies to help us

         19  rebuild the City, the companies directly benefitting

         20  from them, from taxpayers, need to pay their fair

         21  share in building communities and paying a decent

         22  wage.

         23                 A quick note on legislative process.

         24                 A few weeks ago the New York Times

         25  exposed the back room billings (sic) in Albany as a
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          2  travesty to a statewide system of democracy.

          3                 Legislation was not debated enough.

          4  It was tightly controlled by leadership and was not

          5  available for the public to commence.

          6                 A disturbing trend is happening in

          7  the Council that resembles Albany's three men in a

          8  room situation. Today is a perfect example.

          9                 The panelists have had opportunity to

         10  review complex pieces of legislation prior to the

         11  hearing today. The bill has been revised

         12  considerably and we are not able to commend

         13  intelligently on the new version. This situation is

         14  a disservice to the public and the healthy

         15  democratic debate around important pieces of

         16  legislation.

         17                 We encourage the Council to add more

         18  sunshine in the process so the public is not left in

         19  the dark about the people's business.

         20                 I thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         22  much. Let me just express my appreciation for your

         23  remarks. And just for the record, this Council has

         24  always, and continues to be, especially with respect

         25  to this Committee, very open in its process. There
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          2  is no back room three guy kind of approach as far as

          3  this Council is concerned.

          4                 This legislation is a piece of

          5  legislation that had quite a bit of involvement of a

          6  variety of organizations, one of which included

          7  yours, and maybe did not ultimately turn out the way

          8  that we would all have liked, but it cannot be said

          9  for the record that there's been any undemocratic

         10  approach to making this legislation.

         11                 In fact, the legislation has been

         12  going through revisions throughout the day, which is

         13  the reason why we're late, by virtue of various

         14  types of input.

         15                 So, I just want to make sure that it

         16  doesn't go unchallenged, the allegation, that we are

         17  acting as if we are the New York State Legislature,

         18  quite the opposite.

         19                 There are groups that are involved in

         20  this process today that have never been at the table

         21  in terms of the discussion of legislation and

         22  actually getting legislation passed.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 MS. WALDRON: We voted yes because

         25  half is better than none.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, the glass

          3  is half full.

          4                 MR. SONN: Thank you. I'm Paul Sonn,

          5  Brennan Center counsel to the Living Wage Coalition,

          6  and worked with many of you over the last year on

          7  this Living Wage bill.

          8                 Frankly, we're disappointed. This

          9  stripped down Living Wage bill reflects a real lost

         10  opportunity for the City and for the Council.

         11                 This isn't to say that the home care

         12  workers getting the raises under the bill aren't

         13  deserving and the pay hikes for them are just not

         14  nearly enough. But as I think all members of this

         15  body know, that part of the bill has really been a

         16  done deal since January of 2002 when the State

         17  agreed to provide the funding to pay for that pay

         18  hike.

         19                 Instead, we've been working together

         20  to fashion a broader bill on the cornerstone of the

         21  home care pay hike that could raise wages for a

         22  substantial number of additional low-wage New

         23  Yorkers.

         24                 Working together, the bill developed

         25  had two major components, and mindful of the budget
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          2  deficit that's looming, the focus obviously was on

          3  sectors where pay could be raised at little or no

          4  cost to the City.

          5                 The first was the home care piece,

          6  which was doable because the State would pay for

          7  most of the cost. But the second, and equally

          8  important piece, was covering the EDC, Economic

          9  Development Corporation subsidy programs, where pay

         10  hikes for a substantial number of workers could be

         11  done at no cost to the City budget and very modest

         12  cost increase for the infected firms. Policy briefs

         13  that many of you saw we put out last month and it's

         14  available on-line, but it really seemed like exactly

         15  the sort of policy that at a time of austerity and

         16  deficits right now the City should be exploring. No

         17  cost to the budget, modest cost to the firms helps

         18  thousands of workers.

         19                 Now, because of the way this deal

         20  played out, we don't exactly know why this piece was

         21  dropped from the bill, but we really don't think it

         22  was because of opposition from the business

         23  community. Although there was initially some

         24  opposition, our subsequent conversations revealed

         25  that the business community wasn't opposed to the
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          2  principle that folks that get substantial

          3  multi-million dollar taxpayer grants should pay a

          4  living wage in return, frankly these companies don't

          5  have that many low-wage workers, and they

          6  acknowledge bumping up the few mailroom workers, the

          7  cafeteria workers to 8.10 plus a buck-fifty health

          8  benefits is a tiny, tiny hit for them. And they had,

          9  the business groups had some concerns with the

         10  implementation details, but there were fixes that we

         11  were happy to propose that resolved almost all of

         12  their concerns.

         13                 So, if I could speak out of school a

         14  little, and I hope you'll forgive me, this is my

         15  youth or indiscretion, I mean it really looks like

         16  what's going on here, it's not a question about the

         17  cost to the City, and it's not the question of smart

         18  policy, it's a question of the Council not wanting

         19  to look like it's to the left of the Mayor, or not

         20  wanting to have to override a Mayoral veto. And I

         21  have the greatest respect for the members of the

         22  Council and the people in these committees, and I

         23  know why many of you ran for office, and it was with

         24  a vision of changing New York and New York politics,

         25  and that's what's exciting about this new Council,
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          2  it's vision, it's diversity and it's ambition to

          3  change many of the old dynamics. You're really the

          4  voice of the people and the voice of the

          5  neighborhood, but the greatest respect, if we

          6  constrain ourselves to initiatives that will not

          7  elicit or risk Mayoral vetoes, the potential of this

          8  body and of all its talent just will never be

          9  realized. And I know, you know, many members of this

         10  body have stressed in the past that it just makes

         11  sense to require a living wage for businesses that

         12  get substantial benefits from the City. This need is

         13  not going to go away, and as the deficit worsens,

         14  we're going to have to keep working together to find

         15  ways of strategies that won't cost money, but that

         16  will help struggling New Yorkers. And I look forward

         17  to working with you all in the coming months to

         18  realize really the potential of the Council and our

         19  shared goal of developing smart policies such as

         20  that.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 Just a closing point. One thing

         23  that's important, the Council is doing this really

         24  minimalist stripped down Living Wage bill, and we

         25  think it's imperative what the small pieces they're
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          2  biting off they do right. I mean, they're only

          3  covering a few sectors. So, it's critical that in

          4  those sectors that it be done right and the programs

          5  affected not be screwed up, and in particular, where

          6  wage increases affect home care agencies, day care

          7  agencies, et cetera, it's essential that the City

          8  where necessary provide the additional money in

          9  order to make those raises feasible, because none of

         10  us want to service cuts or to disservice these vital

         11  social services that these hard-working caregivers

         12  are providing.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 MR. ROSEBORO: Two quick things before

         15  I start my testimony. First of all, I wish I had

         16  spoken as well, and could speak as well as Paul has.

         17  I hope everybody took a good listen to that.

         18                 I also would like to just comment on

         19  this process. This process of neither we, who

         20  initiated this bill, or those of you who have to

         21  vote on it had any access to its full content until

         22  it's being voted on is an affront to the democratic

         23  process.

         24                 I pray that it's not a process that

         25  will be repeated.
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          2                 While we are pleased that tens of

          3  thousands of low-wage workers -- I'm Elliott

          4  Roseboro, Vice President of New York ACORN, as my

          5  president makes me say.

          6                 While we are pleased that tens of

          7  thousands of low-wage workers will get raises

          8  partially as a result of this bill, we have serious

          9  concerns about the exclusion of lower paid workers

         10  toiling for global corporations that the Council has

         11  chosen not to include any wage benefits raised

         12  requirements.

         13                 These are the same corporations that

         14  have helped lead this City into financial

         15  insolvency. Corporations like Chase Manhattan that

         16  has received over $47 million in City subsidies, yet

         17  still does not pay its service workers, mostly

         18  immigrants, more than $6 an hour. All told, ten of

         19  the largest corporations in the City receive $173

         20  million in tax breaks, and yet not one low-wage

         21  worker in their cafeterias, mailrooms and cleaning

         22  services will receive any wage increases as a result

         23  of this legislation.

         24                 The problem with this debate is that

         25  those workers cannot be here to tell their story.
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          2  They are the unorganized, often non-English speaking

          3  and employed in two or three jobs because they

          4  cannot afford their rent on their primary job.

          5                 Who are they? How many are there?

          6  Without this coverage by the bill, our tax dollars

          7  are contributing to the lower wages and more workers

          8  that don't have benefits to an also -- contributing

          9  to an already overburdened social service system.

         10                 Since this legislation was introduced

         11  in March, the New York Times possibly forecasting

         12  the legislation's fate has constantly referred to

         13  the New York City Living Wage bill as the "so-called

         14  Living Wage bill," compared to other Living Wage

         15  bills passed across the country that don't reward

         16  poverty wages with multi-million dollar subsidies.

         17                 The Times was indeed prophetic in

         18  casting doubt on this legislation as a Living Wage

         19  bill that has much of a spirit and moral force as

         20  well as fiber removed.

         21                 More importantly, less compare the

         22  cost to the City of these workers included in the

         23  bill, and those workers removed from the previous

         24  version. Now, this is a rough estimate, but of

         25  workers that are included, home health care workers,
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          2  the cost to the City, at least $5 million per year,

          3  Head Start and Day Care cost will be figured out in

          4  2006. Cerebral palsy services workers increasing

          5  cost starting in Fiscal 2005, by 2007 estimated cost

          6  a $1 million per year.

          7                 So, estimating annual cost to the

          8  City between eight and nine-million dollars.

          9                 Now, workers left out in the cold.

         10  Subsidies and tax breaks for janitorial, security,

         11  cafeteria and mailroom, none. Large City leases,

         12  janitorial, security $1 million in Fiscal Year 2003.

         13  Large bids, security, street cleaners, none.

         14  Estimated annual cost to this City, $1 million.

         15                 In other words, eight to nine-million

         16  dollars to cover some workers, but not $1 million

         17  more to cover lesser paid workers left out of the

         18  bill.

         19                 As you can see the compromise

         20  hammered out by the Council has more to do with

         21  political consideration, not budgetary

         22  considerations.

         23                 Since this Living Wage bill will not

         24  require any based wage levels for those companies

         25  that are the winners of EDC's prize give-aways,
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          2  ACORN and other budget watchdogs will be tracking

          3  the tax breaks during the next several years of our

          4  budget crisis.

          5                 At a time when tax increases have

          6  become conventional wisdom, corporate tax breaks

          7  should be discouraged but if this free money is

          8  given out at a maximum, they should give their

          9  janitors, cafeteria and security personnel a way

         10  that they can be self-sufficient.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

         13                 MS. HARTZOG: Good evening. My name is

         14  Melanie Hartzog, I'm the Public Policy Associate for

         15  the Human Services Council, and I'm presenting

         16  testimony on behalf of Ed Geffner who is the Chair

         17  of our Government Relations Committee.

         18                 HSC is a member-based agency

         19  representing 200 non-profit organizations that

         20  provide human services to vulnerable New Yorkers.

         21  Leaders of agencies Board of Directors includes

         22  individual community-based organizations, such as

         23  Jewish Board or Family and Children Services,

         24  Children's Aid Society and the YMCA of Greater New

         25  York; associations and federations such as the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            42

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND CONTRACTS

          2  Federation of Protestant Welfare Agencies, Black

          3  Agency Executives, Catholic Charities,

          4  UJA-Federation and the Day Care Council of New York.

          5                 Our member agencies offer a variety

          6  of services, ranging from Child Care and After

          7  School Programs for Children and Youth to

          8  transportation and meals for seniors, as well as

          9  homeless child welfare mental health services.

         10                 We would like to thank Council

         11  Members Perkins and Jackson and members of the

         12  Government Operations and Contracts Committee for

         13  the opportunity to present testimony on the Living

         14  Wage bill.

         15                 HSC supports and endorses the concept

         16  of Living Wage; however, we cannot support this bill

         17  in its current form.

         18                 HSC has and continues to be a staunt

         19  supporter of adequate compensation, especially for

         20  non-profit human service workers.

         21                 In fact, most human service providers

         22  are unable to offer competitive compensation to our

         23  direct service workforce because government

         24  contracts, which comprise the bulk of non-profit

         25  operating budgets, have not kept pace with
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          2  inflation.

          3                 From 1991 to 2001, the Consumer Price

          4  Index rose 29 percent. No human service subsector

          5  has received a cost of living for the workforce

          6  equal to even half of the CPI increase within this

          7  ten-year time frame.

          8                 Consequently, the salaries and

          9  benefits of our front-line staff remain extremely

         10  low, resulting in high staff turnover which

         11  jeopardizes the continuity and quality of client

         12  care.

         13                 Given the magnitude of the non-profit

         14  workforce recruitment and retention crisis, HSC's

         15  200-member agencies, in conjunction with 600 human

         16  service agencies and umbrella organizations across

         17  New York State organize a statewide workforce

         18  campaign.

         19                 The goals of this campaign are to:

         20                 (1) raise the low salaries and human

         21  service subsectors where recruitment and retention

         22  are exceedingly difficult.

         23                 (2) Institutionalize a COLA for human

         24  service contracts in state and local government; and

         25                 (3) Improve the quality of services
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          2  to clients, the retention of our workforce.

          3                 We have had some success in Albany,

          4  notably in the field of mental health, alcoholism

          5  and substance abuse and foster care, but this is

          6  just a start.

          7                 HSC's Board and membership commend

          8  the New York City Council for their leadership in

          9  improving the compensation of our lowest-paid

         10  workers.

         11                 We believe that a Living Wage bill

         12  has the potential to address a portion of the much

         13  larger workforce recruitment and retention issue in

         14  the non-profit human service sector.

         15                 However, we are deeply concerned by

         16  the fact that this bill does not mandate the City

         17  include the cost of increased wage and benefit

         18  levels in its contract with not-for-profit

         19  organizations.

         20                 Without a parallel commitment to fund

         21  the mandated wages, there is only one way to meet

         22  the requirements of this bill, layoff of some

         23  workers to pay others higher wages, and reduce the

         24  services our members agencies provide to the City's

         25  elderly, its children, its core and its disabled.
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          2                 The Living Wage bill, as currently

          3  written, is an unfunded mandate, for reasons which

          4  members of the City Council should understand very

          5  well. Since it has the characteristics of

          6  legislation emanating in Washington and Albany,

          7  which you, and we often argue are unjust and place

          8  severe financial burdens on local government and its

          9  contractors.

         10                 Unlike business corporations,

         11  non-profit human service agencies do not have annual

         12  profits against which to offset our increased cost.

         13                 Agencies particularly troubled by the

         14  impact of this bill on our smaller member agencies,

         15  they rely almost entirely on government contracts

         16  for their revenue and do not have any other

         17  resources.

         18                 Moreover, we are also concerned that

         19  Intro. 66-A, sets a dangerous precedent in which

         20  City government can mandate its non-profit

         21  contractors pay mandated wages without additional

         22  funding. Non-profits cannot accept this precedent,

         23  especially at a time when all of our member agencies

         24  are waiting to learn the magnitude of the cuts they

         25  will have to bear because of the City's bleak fiscal
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          2  outlook.

          3                 For these reasons, HSC requests that

          4  you reconsider this bill; amend it to mandate

          5  increased contract amounts equal to the cost of

          6  increasing wages or exempt non-profits.

          7                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          8  testify on this extremely important piece of

          9  legislation, and we hope the City Council will take

         10  the necessary steps to ensure that not-for-profits,

         11  and more importantly, our workforce is not adversely

         12  affected by Intro. 66-A.

         13                 I'd like to add that the new version

         14  of this bill that's in front of you includes ISEP

         15  workers, expanded in-home services programs, those

         16  are non-Medicaid workers, and it's 100 percent City

         17  tax levy money.

         18                 MR. SONN: Just a point on that just

         19  so people understand; is it okay?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Yes.

         21                 MR. SONN: This is a very small home

         22  care worker program, it's important to include it

         23  because the same agencies who serve most of the home

         24  care workers covered by this bill also serve the

         25  ISEP program, if they were not covered, you know,
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          2  these agencies would have to pay a few of their

          3  workers the old lower wages and it would really

          4  screw things up.

          5                 But equally, if you're going to

          6  include them, you have to provide them the money.

          7  You have to make sure that the agencies are given

          8  the higher home care rate for the ISEP workers, as

          9  well as the Medicaid workers. This is an important

         10  detail and I really implore the Council to work

         11  diligently on this after you adopt this bill, to

         12  make sure that what we're doing, you know, helps and

         13  does not hurt the workers in the programs that we're

         14  talking about.

         15                 MS. HARTZOG: If I may, I have just

         16  one more comment.

         17                 I heard your reference earlier to a

         18  fiscal analysis, so we would implore you to please

         19  very carefully look at the fiscal impact for all

         20  workers included in this bill, because, again, we

         21  support the concept of living wage, but we would not

         22  want this bill to have the unintended consequence of

         23  having our non-profits lay off day care workers that

         24  perhaps are non-unionized or elderly workers that do

         25  not receive any kind of City pass-through of
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          2  funding.

          3                 So, it's a situation where we say be

          4  careful what you wish for, because we don't want

          5  some time down the road local CBOs in your districts

          6  having to lay off workers, some workers, because of

          7  the laudable goal of wage, raising wages for some.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 I want to first express our

         12  appreciation to one and all for your work over the

         13  years with regard to developing consciousness about

         14  the need for a living wage, and even your input with

         15  regard to where we have gotten to today.

         16                 There is a minimal fiscal impact, as

         17  you pointed out, which was not acknowledged in the

         18  testimony of OMB at the time, but which has since

         19  been acknowledged and they will be sending us a memo

         20  to that effect. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Dr. Stewart.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chair.

         24                 I think you've actually answered my

         25  question.
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          2                 However, Paul Sonn, I heard you said

          3  that a while ago that home attendants in essence are

          4  covered by the state to 1199, et cetera, but home

          5  health aides are not, and this bill does not cover

          6  home health aides. Could you speculate as to why if

          7  there's no fiscal impact as to why, if there is no

          8  fiscal impact as to why they were left out?

          9                 MR. SONN: Yes. Unfortunately because

         10  of the scattered structure of the state's home care

         11  system, the City doesn't have the power to control

         12  the home health aide system. That is administered by

         13  the State Health Department and subcontracted

         14  through VNS, the Visiting Nurse Service.

         15                 But it cases real problems cause here

         16  we're having a partial badly needed raise for the

         17  home attendants, the 50,000 workers contracted by

         18  New York City, but this other system which is run by

         19  the State is not affected, and the Council does not

         20  have the power to help them.

         21                 So, it points to there are a lot of

         22  problems in the Statewide home health care system,

         23  and really all of the components badly need a raise,

         24  but this is the one piece that the City controls.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            50

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND CONTRACTS

          2  Vallone.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair.

          5                 Mr. Sonn, thank you for most of the

          6  praise that you gave us, but I do need to set the

          7  record straight on one issue. We do not pass laws

          8  based on a prospective mayoral veto. Next week I

          9  believe we'll be overriding three vetoes, including

         10  predatory lending.

         11                 We respect the opinion of the other

         12  side of the hall, we work with them whenever

         13  possible. We pass bills which won't spend the next

         14  five years in court because we don't come to

         15  agreement beforehand. I think that's the proper way

         16  to do things, and I want to set the record straight

         17  about that, but, again, thank you for all the other

         18  nice things you've said.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         20                 Margarita Lopez from Manhattan.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Council Member

         22  Vallone beat me to the line. I wanted to clarify

         23  that I do not live my life in fear of what the

         24  Mayor's position is.

         25                 I work and I perform my duties in
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          2  here based on what I understand is the most sound

          3  thing to proceed. And if I had to vote a veto,

          4  against a veto that the Mayor put forward, I would

          5  do it without hesitation. The same way that I don't

          6  have no hesitation in working with the Mayor to

          7  approve a bill that would be the first step in

          8  moving forward with a living wage legislation. And I

          9  just wanted to clarify that from my side.

         10                 And I just have one question. When

         11  you say that it's a group of particular workers that

         12  are going to be affected by this bill but they are

         13  not covered, can you clarify deeper on that, both of

         14  you?

         15                 MS. HARTZOG: On the home care side

         16  with the Medicaid workers, that's part of the rate

         17  increase, right? So the State has put up the money

         18  for those workers.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         20                 MS. HARTZOG: Which kicks in the

         21  City's share.

         22                 For the day care side of it, there

         23  are non-unionized workers that operate ACD

         24  facilities, non-for-profits, that are non-unionized,

         25  that are making between 8.10 and $10.00 an hour.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: They don't have

          3  a union. They are day care workers, but they don't

          4  have a union.

          5                 MS. HARTZOG: Right. The

          6  non-for-profit has a contract with ACD to provide

          7  those services. You pass this bill as it's written,

          8  ACD does not have to provide the additional money

          9  for those workers to actually make the mandated

         10  wages. And what we're saying is that's the problem.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Where are these

         12  day care workers?

         13                 Where they are located?

         14                 MS. HARTZOG: There are about 41

         15  programs, roughly, I believe, that are operated by

         16  non-for-profits that are the ACD-funded, some of

         17  them are in the settlement community. We are trying

         18  to get this data from ACD.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the

         20  non-for-profit organizations that have these day

         21  care programs, are not going to receive the

         22  necessary dollars to cover the increase that this

         23  bill will put in place for them through the City,

         24  but they, themselves will be responsible to put this

         25  money through the monies that they're supposed to
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          2  raise privately? That's what we're talking about?

          3                 MS. HARTZOG: Yes. If they have they

          4  have that additional money from philanthropic

          5  resources to do that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well, I am not

          7  going to go in there. I only need to know what you

          8  were saying, because I am of the opinion that in

          9  some cases, I don't think that all of the

         10  non-for-profit have the situation, but in some cases

         11  there are some non-for-profit organizations out

         12  there that chose to pay the executives a lot of

         13  money, but not the people who work on the bottom.

         14  Therefore, I am not going to make a comment in

         15  regard to that for that reason, but I needed to

         16  understand what you were talking about.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         19                 Council Member Reed of Manhattan.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 I'm going to save my comments about

         23  this bill for voting, but I'm curious of the panel,

         24  particularly Mr. Sonn perhaps can help us, when we

         25  met with you all and some of the people from the
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          2  first panel back, actually back in 2001, about the

          3  initial bill, I'm curious, there's been some

          4  discussion up here today about how many people are

          5  actually quote/unquote left out of this bill now,

          6  based on where we started? And many people have come

          7  and testified and said that the poorest, or the

          8  least compensated are the ones who are sort of left

          9  out of this. So, could you just give me a number as

         10  approximate as you can to what we think are the

         11  number of individual workers who are not going to be

         12  covering this bill, who previously would have been?

         13                 MR. SONN: Sure. The numbers are

         14  skewed somewhat because there is one massive

         15  program, the home care program, 50,000 workers, and

         16  then there are a bunch of smaller pieces.

         17                 The most significant piece that was

         18  left out is the subsidy recipient piece that I spoke

         19  to. Our estimates are that in the first year about

         20  2,700 low-wage workers would be affected, but that

         21  grows over the years. As more EDC subsidy deals are

         22  put out it becomes, you know, many thousands over

         23  the years. That is the biggest group that was left

         24  out. If the bill looks like we're doing a lot

         25  because there were the 50,000 home health care
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          2  workers, and the 9,000 day care workers, but in

          3  truth most of the day care workers are making well

          4  above the living wage, sort of a kind of symbolic

          5  add-on with the significant exception of the

          6  programs that Melanie spoke about, the non-union

          7  programs, most of those workers are already above

          8  the living wage level, and including them in the

          9  bill, you know, maybe just keeps them there, but

         10  it's not really giving anyone a raise.

         11                 So, the bill, it's covering this one

         12  big program home care, has the symbolic add on, and

         13  it really dropped all the rest. And the other pieces

         14  that were dropped, they were much smaller than the

         15  home care piece, but everything is going to be

         16  smaller than home care. The home care thing is

         17  massive. But they're important, and it's a shame

         18  that we weren't able to include them.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: The answer to my

         20  question is?

         21                 MR. SONN: If you add them up, yes,

         22  it's probably, you know, maybe we left out 5,000

         23  people or so.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

         25                 MR. SONN: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

          3  Brewer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

          5                 For the Human Services Council, my

          6  question is really very simple, what would be the

          7  time frame, is that a four or five-year, when you

          8  would feel this particular pinch, or is it hard to

          9  say? Is it immediate? I know there's a precedent

         10  issue, I'm very aware of that. I talked to Susie

         11  Edelstein and Megan about this.

         12                 MS. HARTZOG: Yes, Councilwoman, it's

         13  unclear because understand that while we represent a

         14  large proportion of the market, we don't have the

         15  same data that the Comptroller or hopefully your

         16  staff have regarding the implications.

         17                 I can tell you regarding the ISEP

         18  workers -- excuse me. I can tell you that regarding

         19  the workers that would work in senior centers for

         20  the aging, that are not funded by Medicaid, I think

         21  the impact would be immediate. And apropos of

         22  Councilwoman Margarita Lopez' question, those senior

         23  centers, for example, average about $300,000 in

         24  total budget, and receive 95, 98 percent of their

         25  money from the City. So, to go and say your X Y
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          2  worker has to be raised in effect, you know, 90 days

          3  after the effect of the start of the budget, the

          4  start of the bill, rather, there would be no new

          5  City money to do that. So that's where our concern

          6  might very well be a negative effect, where in order

          7  to save one ISEP worker, you have to let a second

          8  ISEP worker go.

          9                 So, we would very much appreciate,

         10  because we only have a part of the pie, we would

         11  very much appreciate some analysis of the impact on

         12  these workers in the different subsectors so we

         13  could fully understand the cost to the City, and

         14  obviously then our position would be we would ask

         15  that you negotiate that as part of your discussions

         16  with the City and then we could be supportive

         17  regarding living wage.

         18                 And we don't know the magnitude of

         19  the problem, Councilwoman. I know definitely with

         20  ISEP, that the problem would be immediate.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Thank

         23  you very much.

         24                 Briefly, please.

         25                 MR. SONN: I would clarify my response
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          2  to Councilman Reed. I had neglected to say there in

          3  fact were several tens of thousands of additional

          4  workers initially proposed to be in the bill, most

          5  through the other human services programs contracted

          6  with the City, many tens of thousands more

          7  originally. So, the bill really is substantially

          8  pared down.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 Thank you, panel.

         13                 The next panel is Reverend John Cole,

         14  Rabbi Michael Feimberg, and Kevin McCullough.

         15                 Would you please swear them in.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please raise

         17  your right hands.

         18                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm the

         19  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         20  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         21                 RABBI FEIMBERG: Yes, I do.

         22                 MR. McCULLOUGH: I do.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         24  your names and affiliations for the record.

         25                 RABBI FEIMBERG: Rabbi Michael
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          2  Feimberg, Executive Director, Greater New York Labor

          3  Religion Coalition.

          4                 MR. McCULLOUGH: Kevin McCullough,

          5  Local 210 of the Teamsters.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Please go ahead.

          7                 RABBI FEIMBERG: Good evening. I'm

          8  testifying today on behalf of the more than 1,000

          9  clergy members of the Greater New York

         10  Labor-Religion Coalition, an interfaith alliance

         11  drawn from all five boroughs across the City of

         12  Jews, Muslims, Christians and people from other

         13  faith traditions, working together to advocate for

         14  the rights of low-wage and immigrant workers and the

         15  working poor in our City.

         16                 We work closely with local labor

         17  unions organizing this population of workers. We see

         18  ourselves as allies to these workers in their own

         19  efforts to empower themselves and to organize to

         20  improve their working conditions and their lives.

         21                 In this work we draw upon the central

         22  teaching of our faith traditions and their

         23  insistence upon the dignity of labor and their

         24  imperative to seek justice for all workers.

         25                 Here in New York we face the enormous
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          2  social, and I would say religious and ethical

          3  challenge of an already vast and still growing gap

          4  in income between the highest earners and low-wage

          5  largely immigrant service workers.

          6                 The United States leads the western

          7  industrial world in this income gap and New York

          8  City leads all cities in the nation.

          9                 The facts are stark.

         10                 We know that tens of thousands of

         11  low-wage workers in New York City, the majority

         12  immigrants and people of color work at or barely

         13  above the minimum wage level.

         14                 Untold numbers more are forced

         15  illegally to work below the minimum. One in every

         16  five New Yorkers, including many full-time workers,

         17  lives below the federal poverty level. In the

         18  richest City on earth, one in four children in New

         19  York lives in poverty. Passing a true living wage

         20  ordinance in New York will set the City on record,

         21  supporting a basic social contract that all workers

         22  should be paid at a wage level that permits them and

         23  their families to sustain themselves to meet their

         24  basic needs and to live in dignity.

         25                 From the voice of our varied
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          2  religious traditions, the prophetic message is

          3  clear: To allow workers to toil full time and yet

          4  persist in poverty is morally unacceptable and

          5  unjust.

          6                 Public monies should not and must not

          7  be used to subsidize poverty-level wages.

          8  Corporations to which the City awards subsidies must

          9  be held accountable and provide every one of its

         10  employees, without exception, a living wage.

         11                 It is this principal that is at the

         12  heart of any meaningful Living Wage bill, and the

         13  bill that we as a coalition, a broad coalition of

         14  labor unions, community groups and religious

         15  institutions forged over the course of a year and a

         16  half.

         17                 My own tradition Judaism is emphatic

         18  about the rights of low-waged workers. To quote from

         19  Hebrew scripture, "you shall not abuse a needy and

         20  destitute laborer, whether a fellow countryman or a

         21  stranger in one of the communities in your land.

         22  Violation of this principle is so severe that it was

         23  likened by the rabbis of the Talmud as akin to

         24  murder. One who withholds a worker's living wage is

         25  as though he has deprived him of his life."
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          2                 Similar ethical traditions are to be

          3  found in Islam and Christianity as well as other

          4  faith traditions.

          5                 A true living wage ordinance in New

          6  York City not only makes sound economic sense

          7  pumping new monies into the City's economy, but as

          8  importantly from the standpoint of religious ethics,

          9  it is the right thing to do.

         10                 Let us through the passage of a true

         11  living wage bill commit ourselves to the pursuit of

         12  justice for all workers in our City that all might

         13  live with dignity for themselves and their families.

         14  And hopefully we can still do this together,

         15  advocates and City Council Members alike. Thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         18                 Mr. McCullough.

         19                 MR. McCULLOUGH: Thank you. My name is

         20  Kevin McCullough. I'm with the union that represents

         21  the cleaners who work for the BIDs.

         22                 First, I want to thank the Committee

         23  for the actions that they had taken already,

         24  especially co-chair Bill Perkins, he's done a very

         25  good job, and the whole Committee has.
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          2                 But I would like to speak on the

          3  removal of the BIDs from the proposed legislation.

          4                 The Real Estate industry in New York

          5  is probably the wealthiest in the world. The owners

          6  impose an assessment on themselves with City

          7  approval. There is no subsidy involved so it would

          8  not cost the City any money if the BIDs were

          9  included.

         10                 The workers I represent clean in

         11  front of the City buildings and shovel snow in the

         12  winter. I don't believe 8.10 an hour to be

         13  excessive, but if it is, it is my belief should

         14  reduce the staff to allow for minimum wage of $8.10.

         15  The new proposed minimum affects so few workers that

         16  the cost to the BIDs is negligible.

         17                 If the owners perform their services

         18  themselves, they would pay $17 an hour with a local

         19  32-B worker, or approximately $24 per hour if done

         20  by the Department of Sanitation.

         21                 It's no wonder that Mayor Bloomberg

         22  is encouraging more and more BIDs, because he sees

         23  that it's a wise investment.

         24                 This winter when you pass a BID

         25  worker and you realize that he's making less than
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          2  $8.10 an hour, I want you to think about it, and the

          3  next time this legislation comes up, would like you

          4  to vote to include BIDs as part of the Living Wage

          5  bill.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 As I indicated, as well as the Chair

         10  of the Contracts Committee indicated. We do not see

         11  this as the end, but rather as a beginning, such

         12  that we will be able to include all those, if not

         13  even more that we were not able to include at this

         14  point in time.

         15                 So, thank you very much for your role

         16  and your contribution in getting us to where we are

         17  today.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: We're going to

         20  take a roll call vote now.

         21                 We'll start with the Governmental

         22  Operations Committee. I want to acknowledge the

         23  presence of Councilwoman Christine Quinn.

         24                 Okay, we're ready.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I want to

          3  recommend that we vote aye.

          4                 I want to again reiterate that I

          5  believe this is a good bill, provides at least

          6  50,000 low-wage workers with a living wage. It

          7  recognize the dignity of their work. It does not

          8  include all that we would have liked to have

          9  included, but we believe that this is a giant step

         10  in the right direction, and I would recommend to my

         11  colleagues that they vote aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reed.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I request

         14  permission to explain my vote?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: By all means.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I am, as we all

         17  are, disappointed, I think that's the nature of the

         18  business that we're in, not necessarily coming away

         19  with everything that we want. And I am led by my

         20  colleague, Council Member Perkins, and Council

         21  Member Jackson, and I am committed to the same

         22  values that they are. I am confident that they came

         23  away from the table with what indeed is extremely

         24  difficult, stressful times, was in the best interest

         25  of the most people, which is really what is
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          2  important. And I think the disappointment that we've

          3  heard expressed by some of the advocates is

          4  certainly felt by those of us who are here on this

          5  side of the dais.

          6                 But in light, again, of the

          7  environment that we have in the City and what we're

          8  facing, I would assume, and I wasn't involved with

          9  this, that is why we reached this compromise, and

         10  this is only a beginning. I'm looking forward to

         11  next year's budget negotiations that we bring these

         12  issues back to us. And certainly am proud to stand

         13  with Council Member Jackson and Council Member

         14  Perkins, because I know their commitment to the

         15  social justice issues that I think Living Wage is

         16  trying to address.

         17                 So, with that said, I vote aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Nelson.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Mr. Chairman,
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          2  may I be excused to explain my vote?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: By all means,

          4  before 6:00.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes, I'll

          6  try.

          7                 You know, in hearing many of the

          8  concerns of those who testified today, and as well

          9  as my colleagues, I understand the bill may be

         10  watered down or stripped or have "no teeth," as one

         11  of my colleagues had said, but in terms of having no

         12  teeth, neither did any of us when we were born, and

         13  I think that's what we have today, we have a new

         14  bill. We have a new bill and therefore we treat it

         15  like a new baby, and after hearing the concerns I

         16  look at them on their merits, and see hopefully some

         17  day we can implement them at a future date, when the

         18  City may be doing better financially, but today I do

         19  think we take a positive first step to protecting

         20  approximately 50,000 more families, workers

         21  throughout the City, and I applaud the incredible

         22  work of this Committee, both Committees and their

         23  staff, and as a proud sponsor of this bill I vote

         24  aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vallone.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: May I be very

          3  briefly excused to explain my vote?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: As much time as

          5  you need.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: See that,

          7  Joe?

          8                 I don't even have any quotes like Joe

          9  does. I do believe this is a good bill but it may

         10  come at a very bad time. And I am not at all clear

         11  about the financial impact of the bill at this

         12  point.

         13                 I am going, though, to vote this bill

         14  out of Committee and vote aye, because I do think

         15  it's worthy of consideration of the entire Council,

         16  and I'm going to withhold any decision on my final

         17  vote until I do get the final financial statements

         18  regarding this bill.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: If I may

         21  interrupt.

         22                 The Administration has provided us

         23  with --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Minimal.

         25  Doesn't mean anything to me. I don't know what
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          2  minimal means, but I'm going to find out what

          3  minimal means.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I'm going to

          5  tell you. I'm going to tell you because they have

          6  provided us with a number, not just a description,

          7  and the number is, and they just brought it to us,

          8  so just for the record I want to put this in. For FY

          9  2003 it's 2 million; '04, it's 5; and full fiscal

         10  impact FY '05 it's 6.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Six is the

         12  figure that we had before this hearing. I'd still

         13  like to get some confirmation of that.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of eight in

         16  the affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         17  abstentions, the item is approved by the Committee

         18  on Governmental Operations.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Contracts.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: We're going to

         22  hold open the Governmental Operations.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, based on my

         24  opening statement as to the impact of this bill on

         25  the employees that I enumerated some of their names,
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          2  and I know many of them and many of these employees

          3  live in my district, where the median family income

          4  is no more than $35,000, and all things considered,

          5  the City's fiscal situation, and last-minute

          6  negotiations, I vote emphatically aye to covering

          7  these workers, and I strongly recommend to my

          8  Committee members to do the same.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ permission to

         12  explain my vote, Mr. Chair?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So granted.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I believe that

         15  every bill moves forward depending what force is

         16  behind it, and the bill that will move forward will

         17  be as big as possible, depending on the force that

         18  is behind it. And the force behind this bill was

         19  absent of the workers who are going to be affected

         20  by this.

         21                 For that reason, I believe that we

         22  have a change on the bill at the end that is in

         23  front of us. I believe that we do good in approving

         24  this bill and I think that the Chairman of the

         25  Contracts Committee, and the Chairman of Government
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          2  Operations Committee should be very proud of the

          3  work that they have done.

          4                 I don't think there is nothing wrong

          5  with this bill, in accordance to what was put

          6  forward behind it.

          7                 I'm looking forward for the next bill

          8  tomorrow, in which we will mobilize the base that is

          9  affected by this bill like all of the union members

         10  who were not present here today, the rank and file

         11  who need to fight for the increases of salary in the

         12  particular unions, in the particular jobs.

         13                 I also think that 1199 has done a

         14  magnificent job in protecting the workers that they

         15  represent in bringing this issue forward and

         16  bringing this bill forward for the protection

         17  further of the membership is also something that we

         18  shall be happy about it.

         19                 Therefore, no question in my mind,

         20  I'm voting yes on this bill.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: As a member

         23  of the Contracts Committee I'm voting aye again.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke.

         25                 (No response.)
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Stewart.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Mr. Chair,

          4  may I be excused to explain my vote?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You may.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I'm somewhat

          7  a little disturbed and dissatisfied that a clear-cut

          8  explanation was not given why home health aides and

          9  the BIDs were not included in this bill.

         10                 Considering the fact that minimal

         11  fiscal impact with this bill and they were left out.

         12  And the major part of this bill covered the home

         13  care workers who were already covered with 1199 and

         14  through the State, and I feel that we are

         15  shortchanging some of our workers.

         16                 However, I will vote aye for this

         17  bill but hope, without delay, that consideration be

         18  given to these groups that were left out.

         19                 Again, I vote aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         21  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         22  abstentions, the item is approved.

         23                 Council Members, please sign the

         24  Committee report.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I request that
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          2  the record remain open for Council Member

          3  Clarke, to record her vote.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And by the same

          5  token, the Governmental Operation's Committee record

          6  will remain open, and I want to assure my colleague,

          7  Mr. Stewart, that the concerns that you have are

          8  shared by the Chairmen of both Committees, and that

          9  we will be continuously working to make sure that

         10  all low wage workers that are working for a

         11  subsidized corporations pay their workers a living

         12  wage as well.

         13                 So, it is with regret that we have

         14  come to this point where they have been left out,

         15  but it is with great pride that we have been able to

         16  at least include over 50,000 other low-wage workers

         17  in this particular bill at this particular time, in

         18  a way that will significantly impact their lives and

         19  the lives of the community and the lives of this

         20  City in a difficult time for the City economically.

         21  Thank you very much.

         22                 I want to take a quick moment to

         23  thank staff, Trisha Jackson, one of our attorneys,

         24  new attorneys -- thank you, Trish. Matthew Tolan,

         25  Counsel for the Governmental Operations Committee.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And all staff

          3  that worked on the bill.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          5  much. This meeting is adjourned.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 5:52 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, SHERRI MATTHEIS, a Notary Public

         10  in and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 30th day of October 2002.
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         24                          SHERRI MATTHEIS
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